SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 7, 2017
9:01 a.m

9:01: 14 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:01 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pitney, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
O fice of the Governor.

SUWWARY

SB 43 APPROP: SUPP; CAP; REAPPROP; AMEND; REPEAL
SB 43 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#sb43

SENATE BI LL NO. 43

"An Act meking supplenental appropriations, capital
appropri ations, and ot her appropriations; maki ng
reappropriations; anending appropriations; repealing
appropriations; and providing for an effective date."

9:01: 42 AM




PAT PITNEY, D RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, thought that the supplenental bil
was fairly straightforward and informed that it included
four significant itens.

Ms. Pitney discussed the presentation "FY2017 Suppl enment al
Bill - Senate Finance Conmittee"” (copy on file). She turned
to slide 2, which showed a table entitled 'FY2017
Suppl enental Summary.' She pointed out that the summary
included an Unrestricted General Fund (UGF) increnent
request of $51.7 mllion. After adding the Designated
CGeneral Funds (DGF), federal funds, and other funds; the
total was $113.5 million.

Ms. Pitney showed slide 3, "UGH DG/ O her/Fed Sumrary by
Department (1088)."

Ms. Pitney showed slide 4, "Statew de Departnment Sunmary -
Capi tal Budget (1183)."

Ms. Pitney addressed a 10-page FY 17 Supplenental Bill

Summary (paged 1 - 10) that was included wthin the
presentation. She pointed out line 2 on page 1 of the
summary, which showed a rate increase for Al aska Care from
$1,346 to $1,555 per nonth, per enployee. She referred to
an anendnent late in the previous session that had
requested a $15 mllion increase for the healthcare rate

as the state was drawing down on reserves at a faster rate
than previously. The previous year there had been a $7.5
mllion deposit in to the Health Reserve Fund, which
enabled the state to get through the first half of the
year.

Ms. Pitney continued discussing the supplenental request
for healthcare, noting that there had been a md-year
heal thcare rate increase. The current request was for the
General Fund (GF) requirement for the rate increase. Most
of the non-GF conponents had been added in the budget.

9:05:41 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon inquired about $853,000 being taken from
the Alaska Marine H ghway Fund. She wondered if the funds
were intended to help cover the individuals in the union.

Ms. Pitney explained that the md-year rate increase had
i ncreased the cost, and the took care for the cost of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 02/07/17 9:01 A M



heal thcare rate increase for that group of enployees. She
offered to give a conplete breakdown by fund source for
each group listed in the supplenmental item description

Senator M cciche thought he m ght want to review the Mrine
H ghway Fund. He knew that nmany budget cuts had been
directed toward the use of the fund, and wondered if there
was a robust enough balance in the fund to cover the
suppl enental item as well as the other DG uses that had
been directed.

Ms. Pitney relayed that the administration felt confortable
that the fund was heal thy enough to fund the request.

Senator M cciche wondered if the adm nistration had | ooked
at the health insurance increases and was devising a plan
for the future. He acknow edged that nost of the groups
were bargaining units and did not know when the contracts
reopened. He thought it was tinme that the enpl oyees shared
t he costs.

Ms. Pitney stated that the admnistration had the topic on

its radar, and furthered that Departnent of Revenue
Comm ssi oner Shel don Fisher was working with all the unions
(especially consi dering t he heal t hcare authority

feasibility study) and |ooking at the various healthcare
strategies that unions were using. She nentioned that there
were sone unions with healthcare trusts. She stated that
some of the negotiations had the anount paid for healthcare
for the unions aligned with the Al aska Care paynment. O her
unions were | ooking at the healthcare trust and considering
what shoul d be paid to cover healthcare needs.

Ms. Pitney continued that to limt the rate increase, the
adm ni stration was consi dering phar macy cost - savi ng
efforts, provider contracting, as well as pushing nore
costs to enployees to pay part of the premi um She informed
that all enployees in Al aska Care paid prem uns, which were
i ncreasi ng again on Decenber 1, 2018.

9:09: 24 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman asked how rmuch of the healthcare increase
was included in the FY 18 budget. He asked how much of the
cost increases had the enployee seen, or if all the
i ncreased costs were falling on the enpl oyer.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Ms. Pitney stated that the Alaska Care increase was $12
mllion total (of which $6 nillion was UGF), of which
approximately $3 million had been passed on to enpl oyees.

Ms. Pitney stated that if the admnistration had not
increased the enployee premum the enployer contribution
woul d have been $3 nmillion nore.

Ms. Pitney addressed line 3 on page 1 of the summary. She
explained that at the end of the sunmmer, the supervisory
union contract was finalized. Part of the contract
negotiation had included a nandatory 15-hour furl ough,
which resulted in savings of $900,000; $358,000 of which
was G-.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked if the state had investigated the
|l ong-term effects of furloughs, and how it affected future
contract negotiations. She wondered how it worked for a
sal ari ed enpl oyee.

Ms. Pitney clarified that furlough was unpaid time off, and
it was mandated that enployees take unpaid |eave. I|f the
state wanted to avoid furloughs in the future, it would be
an increnment to avoid forced furl oughs.

9:13:13 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if there had been any study of
ot her organi zations that had used furloughs to understand
possi bl e consequences.

Ms. Pitney agreed to check wth Conm ssioner Fisher to
ascertain an answer to Co-Chair MacKi nnon's questi on.

Senator M cciche wondered how many nenbers were in the
supervisory unit.

Ms. Pitney specified there were 2,300 nenbers.

Senator M cciche wondered about possible savings through
taking the furlough program through all the ranks at the
st at e.

Ms. Pitney explained that the adm nistration had negoti ated
furloughs in nost all of the contracts. The GCeneral
Government Unit (G3J) contract had also negotiated a
furlough that was included in the original 2017 budget.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Many of the exenpt and non-exenpt enployees were forced to
take furloughs starting in 2016 to adjust to the budget
| evel s. Furlough days ranged from a mninmum of 2 days (15
hours) for G&J, wth sonme units (Departnent of Law,
Department of Natural Resources) wusing up to 5 days of
furl ough to neet budgets.

Senator Mcciche asked Ms. Pitney to provide the conmttee
with the furlough figures to exam ne overall effectiveness
towards savings. He wondered if the furlough days were
pushi ng work toward contractors.

Ms. Pitney agreed to provide the information.

9:16: 32 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon noted that the legislature had
i npl enented a simlar furlough policy. She wondered, since
it was possible to negotiate 15-hour furloughs, what effort
had been nmade to negotiate across the board for pay
freezes.

Senat or M cciche discussed unallocated cuts and the concept
of effective managenent in the agenci es.

Senator von |nmhof referenced Senator M cciche's comrents,
and thought having uniform furloughs or pay freezes could
pr ohi bi t flexibility that managers could enploy to
creatively manage to a dollar figure. She suggested that
tailored decision-nmaking for each departnent would be
effective to get through lean fiscal tinmes. She worried
that having one tool wuniformy applied to all agencies
mght not be the nost effective way of nanaging. She
wondered i f managers could be given nore flexibility.

9:19:38 AM

Ms. Pitney addressed line 4 and line 5 on page 1 of the
suppl enmental summary, which were technical in nature. Line
4 referred to a Vendor Administrative Fee. She detailed
that part of shared services reorganization and process
streamlining included inplenmentation of a cooperative
contract. If the state paid within ten days, the vendor
woul d return part of a small fee which would cover the cost
of the shared services procurenent organization. She
detailed that the process was inplenented after the FY 17
budget had been put together.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Co- Chai r MacKi nnon asked why the funds were being
designated as DGF rather than just dropping it in the G-

Ms. Pitney stated that it had been assigned as a G- program
receipt.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if M. Pitney knew of estinmated
cost savings for the statew de program

Ms. Pitney referred to shared services reorganization in
the FY 18 budget, which would realize savings of $600, 000.
The savings was anticipated to double in the follow ng
year .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the $600,000 in FY 18 savings
woul d be doubled, or if there would be an additional $1.2
mllion in savings.

Ms. Pitney clarified that there would be $1.2 nillion
addi ti onal savi ngs.

9:22: 33 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop referred to the fund source switch for
the Vendor Admi nistrator Fee, and wondered if the savings
was realized through tinmely paynent.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Bishop referred to the oil and gas industry, and
negoti ati ons.

Ms. Pitney recalled a reduction that the admnistration
took in FY 16, after negotiating down all the contracts.
She stated that Comm ssioner Fisher could show results of
t he negoti ati on.

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to Line 5, which appeared to be
a repurposing of funds. She wondered if there was a new
$1.4 mllion for the Alaska Land Mbile Radio (ALMR)
system

Ms. Pitney answered in the negative. She elaborated that
the United States Departnent of Defense (DOD) had paid a
contract directly to the vendor; and the state had paid for
its share of the contract directly to the vendor. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 02/07/17 9:01 A M



continued that DOD had new rules and could not pay directly
to the vendor, but rather nust pay through the state.

9:24:52 AM
AT EASE

9:25:32 AM
RECONVENED

Ms. Pitney turned to page 2 of the sunmary, and addressed
line 6. The item was an increnent request of $453,000 for
the Public Defender Agency. She explained that part of the
agency's revenue stream was collections; a |large portion of
which was from the Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD). The
collections had fallen short of the original estimte, and
the increnment would replace the | ost revenue.

Ms. Pitney addressed line 7, which pertained to a federa
grant that would help the Division of Mtor Vehicles
monitor the entities that did training and testing for a
commercial driver's |license. The nonitoring was a result of
an audit finding, and the federal governnment was providing
a grant to help support the nonitoring.

Ms. Pitney addressed line 8, a $130,000 DGF increase which
was a result of a reclassification for occupationa
licensing exam ners. There was a reclassification for the
enpl oyees from range 13 to range 14. There was a
correspondi ng amount in the governor's proposed budget.

9:27:22 AM

Senator Dunleavy asked if the increase on line 8 was a
result of a decision to increase salary.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if there was a board that nanaged
the licensing structure that had requested the change, or
if it had been an adm nistrative request.

Ms. Pitney was not aware if the request was from the board
or from the administration. She detailed that there was a
statute that provided for classification studies.

Senator Dunl eavy comrented that he did not understand why
there were salary increases being discussed when the state

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 02/07/17 9:01 A M



had a $3 billion deficit. He did not understand why the
adm nistration was not trying to reduce its budget by the
same anount that was being requested in the supplenental
He did not think the state would get out of its fiscal
chal  enge by doing things as it had al ways done.

Co-Chair MacKinnon agreed with the premse of Senator
Dunl eavy's comments, and thought it mght be helpful to
exam ne a salary study. She wondered about the salary of a
range 13 versus a range 14.

9:30: 56 AM

Ms. Pitney stated that the salary in question was $45, 000
per year, and the average inpact was about $4,000. She
qualified that the increase was based on the conplexity of
work and the analysis of the classification study. She
referenced Departnent of Labor and W rkforce Devel opnent
| aws and t he concept of equal pay for equal work.

Ms. Pitney turned to page 3 of the summary, and noted it
was full of technical changes. She specified that one item
was a fund source clean-up based on better accounting
information. The next item was associated with the health
insurance rate increase. There were two conponents
i nvol ved, and the original budget only had the appropriate
itemin one.

Ms. Pitney turned to page 4 of the sunmary, and addressed
lines 11, 12, and 13; as well as line 14 on the follow ng
page. The itens pertained to increases in funding to the
Medi caid program and totaled $26.7 million between the 4
conmponents. She recalled that FY 16 paynents from the
previ ous year were delayed and pushed in to FY 17, because
the FY 16 funding | evel had not been sufficient.

9:33: 36 AM
AT EASE

9:37:48 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair MacKi nnon referred to the Medicaid i ncreases, sone
of which had to do with normal healthcare increases over
time.

Ms. Pitney concurred.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Co-Chair MacKinnon asked M. Pitney to provide nore
information on the reinbursenent of the advance the state
had paid to Medicaid service delivery providers. She
t hought the advance had started in FY 16. She recalled a
report from the previous year that suggested there was an
outstanding $80 mllion from vendors that had been advance-
paid in 2016. The commttee had not been updated on the
vendor repaynent, and wondered how it pertained to |ines
11, 12, 13, and 14.

Ms. Pitney explained that an issue with Xerox at the end of
FY 16 had conplicated budget resolution, so it was not
possible to accurately predict how much woul d be needed for
a suppl enent al at the sanme tinme |ast year. The
adm nistration had nade the decision to work to get the
rei nbursenents. She offered to provide a report with exact
figures as soon as possible, and stated that the situation
was being nonitored consistently. She anticipated at | east
$40 mllion of reinbursements in FY 17. She relayed that
Medi caid services was working diligently to get all the
bills processed (from the conplication with Xerox), and to
get the rei nmbursenents

9:40: 46 AM

Senat or M cci che clarified t hat t he committee was
di scussing provider paynents in lines 11 through 14, that
amounted to $27 mllion.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that the conmttee was | ooking at
an approximately $25 mllion UG- request for inplenentation
of Medicaid. The matter had been conplicated by a |awsuit
w th Xerox, pre-paynent to vendors, a 9 percent increase to
the cost of healthcare, and an administrative order to
expand Medicaid. She asked M. Pitney to provide nore
clarity on the requests. She thought it would be hel pful to
have an wupdate from Departnent of Health and Socia
Services (DHSS) Conm ssioner of Valerie Davidson to discuss
t he remai ni ng probl ens.

Senator Mcciche wanted greater detail, and noted that
t hrough the executive order on expansion of Mdicaid there
had been mllions of dollars of expected savings. He wanted
to see the information conpiled into one docunent, to
i nclude expectations and reality. He wanted to see how
Medi cai d expansi on had affected the bottomline.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 02/07/17 9:01 A M



9:43:13 AM

Co- Chair Hoffman noted that each conponent being considered
included the text "As a result of reprocessing these clains
at the close of FY2016, the Departnent had to limt the
nunber of clains that were to process for Medicaid
providers." He wondered if it was possible to get a list by
conponent to determne which clains were |imted. He wanted
to examne the claims in each category. He wondered what
type of guidelines were used to determ ne what would be
pai d and what woul dn't.

Ms. Pitney agreed to provide the information.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked if he could review the clains |listed
by vendor in order to help consider the supplenental
requests.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  asked  Ms. Pitney to wrk wth
Comm ssi oner Davidson to conpile a short presentation for
the commttee in order to discuss the conponents at a |ater
time.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop echoed Co-Chair Hoffrman's comments about
the itens being a one-time increment. He recalled the

previous year that there was approximately $27 nmillion in
Medi cai d savings. He thought if the request was a one-tinme
increnent for $27 mllion, there should be no further

request, |ess normal customary increases.

Ms. Pitney stated that there was a one-tinme increnent
because the itens were a one-tine cost pushed from FY 16 to
FY 17. Before the increase, the anobunt was $580 nmillion,
which was $90 million below the FY 15 Medicaid cost. Wth
the increment, the cost was $60 million below the FY 15
Medi cai d program cost. In conjunction with the savings from
cost shifting to federal dollars through Medicaid
expansion, the state was seeing significant increases in
t he nunber of eligible individuals. She thought the econony
woul d drive the costs up as well.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop asked for any forthcomng information to
include a report on the savings from the previous year's
budget, and whether it was fromthe sane area of expense as
t he request.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 02/07/17 9:01 A M



9:47:46 AM

Senator von |Inmhof understood that prior to Medicaid
expansion, Indian Health Service (IHS) funding had covered
much of the healthcare for the population that now
qualified wunder Medicaid expansion. She thought since
Medi caid expansion, there had been a shift to Medicaid
funds; yet since I|IHS was population-based, healthcare
providers around the state were still receiving funds from
|HS. She wondered how IHS funds were presently being
allocated, and if they were a potential source of funds to
hel p of fset sone of the one-tinme fees.

Ms. Pitney agreed to provide nore information on Senator
von |Imhof's question. She referred the question to
Conmi ssi oner Davi dson.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the FY 18 operating budget bill
had the cost increases fromlines 11-14 built into it. She
wondered if the FY 18 budget was constructed so there would
be no antici pated suppl enental request.

Ms. Pitney answered that the FY 18 budget was at the
original FY 17 rate.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the FY 18 budget would then be
short by $25 million.

V5. Pitney stated that the admnistration was in
di scussions as to how additional savings mght be garnered,
but the FY 18 amunt was at the FY 17 level of $580
mllion.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for clarification that the FY 18
budget did not reflect the increase to the budget, and
woul d be short $25 million.

Co-Chair Hoffman thought the departnment was on record
saying the FY 18 budget was one that could be adm nistered.
He noted that the itens all stated they were a one-tine
i ncrenent, which did not expect an increnent the follow ng
year .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon concurred with the |anguage, but was not
sure if the budget reality would match

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Co-Chair Hoffman thought if administration did not believe

the explanation to be true, it should not have been
witten.
9:51: 05 AM

Senator O son wondered how much, if any, of the GF dollars
that were allocated in FY 16 had |apsed as a result of the
delay from pushing FY 16 costs into FY 17.

Ms. Pitney stated there was no |apse, and the only reason
t he paynents were pushed into FY 17 was due to insufficient
funding in FY 16.

Co-Chair MucKi nnon asked if there was a vote to access the
Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR) in FY 16 that could
have accessed the funds.

Ms. Pitney stated that there mght have been enough
flexibility wthin the CBR vote, but because of the
conplications with the Xerox system and the inplenentation
of the IRIS system the adm nistration had been unclear as
to the anobunt of the paynments. She asked the conmittee to
recall the prior year's supplenental request that had
overshot the mark.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked Ms. Pitney if there was a CBR vote
in 2017, and if the admnistration needed access authority
for the spend.

Ms. Pitney stated that there was a CBR vote, that had a
$100 mllion UG- limt. The supplenental request was for
$51 mllion UG

Ms. Pitney infornmed that lines 15, 16, and 17 on page 5
were all grant related itens, to receive receipt authority
to execute on grant prograns.

Ms. Pitney relayed that lines 18, 19, 20, and 21 on page 6
were grants and techni cal changes.

Ms. Pitney spoke to line 24, related to the fact that Whale
Pass recently voted to becone a Second Cass City. The
organi zational grant cane with a $75,000 UG- grant fromthe
st at e.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Ms. Pitney noved to page 7, where lines 25 and 26 pertained
to Departnment of Fish and Gane (DFG. The first item
provided funding for two organizations to continue studies
that had begun in 2013. The second item requested $3
mllion of DFG funds to match (and thereby utilize) $9
mllion of Pittman-Roberts federal funds.

Ms. Pitney spoke to line 30, which was a request to allow
the Labor Relations group to carry forward a capital grant
to augnent its union negotiating issues. The grant was
started in FY 15, and there was approximtely $250, 000
remai ni ng.

9:55:41 AM

Ms. Pitney spoke to line 31, which was a reappropriation
from the Departnment of Public Safety. There had been a
driving range proposed for the Sitka Police Acadeny, and it
had been considered a nore prudent use of funds to pay for
mai nt enance and upgrade of the ALMR system The item needed
$4.5 mllion for the inmediate upgrade and naintenance
i ssues. She thought there would be a forthcom ng amendnent
for the renaining anount of funds.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon recalled | anguage in the previous year's
operating budget t hat had requested replacenent or
di ssolution of the system

Ms. Pitney confirmed that there had been intent |anguage to
find an alternative to the ALMR system and there had been
two or three past studies and a recent report on the
matter. The study findings had been that ALMR was the best
alternative for the present tine. She offered to provide
the report to the commttee.

Co-Chair Hoffman referred to Iine 26, and asked Ms. Pitney
to provide the commttee with the targeted use of the $12
mllion for wldlife managenent mapping, hunter access
i nprovenents, and the locations wth specific itens for
each project.

Ms. Pitney agreed to provide the information.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop asked about Ms. Pitney's reference to a
driving range.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Ms. Pitney explained that the reappropriation for ALMR on
line 31 was from an ol der appropriation for a driving range
at the Sitka Police Acadeny. She added that the Al aska
State Troopers heavily depended upon ALMR, and accepted
that the communications system was a higher priority given
the fiscal environnment.

Vice-Chair Bishop noted that if the police acadeny still
needed a driving range, it could reach out to Fort Geely
where there was a racetrack for testing autonobil es.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought the acadenmy was currently using
a school parking lot for driving training.

9:59:46 AM

Ms. Pitney addressed |line 32 on page 8 of the suppl enenta
table; which pertained to a federal grant for health
i nsurance enforcenent and consuner protection.

MVs. Pitney shared that line 33 was a significant
suppl enental request for Departnent of Corrections (DOC)
heal t hcare conponents. She detailed that through Medicaid
expansion, the departnent had been able to nobve prisoners
who spent nore than 24 hours in hospitals on to Medicaid

The administration had anticipated that there would have
been nore savings, and were able to start the programin FY
16. The DOC heal t hcare conmponent was reduced by $6 mllion
in FY 17 through the fiscal notes for the Mdicaid reform
effort. The departnent was still receiving benefits through
Medi cai d expansi on (and would have nore participants in the
expansion group), but the general healthcare for DOC was
surpassi ng the anmount appropriated by $11 mllion.

Ms. Pitney continued, explaining that the supplenental
request was for up to $8 nmillion in G-, and perm ssion to
allow DOC to use any savings it could find in other areas
to offset the <cost increase. She detailed that the
departnment was seeing significant cost increases for itens
such as dialysis, Hepatitis-C nedications. Additionally,
there were problens wth nursing recruitnent, and the
departnment was using overtine as well as tenporary nursing
contracts. She reiterated that the departnment was not
seeing the savings it had anticipated. She enphasized that
the admnistration was working regularly with DOC to
monitor the situation, and would be working in the
framework of the healthcare authority to negotiate rates.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 02/07/17 9:01 A M



She noted that the item was the nost significant
suppl emental item

10: 03: 50 AM

Senator Mcciche referred to the $8 mllion appropriation
FY 14 for the PFD Crimnal Fund, and wondered if it
occurred every year to go towards DOC healthcare for the
i ncar cer at ed popul ati on.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Senator M cciche asked if the supplenental request was over
and above the $8 million appropriation.

Ms. Pitney stated that the funds had been allocated, but
the nechanism was a year delayed. For FY 17, the anount of
noney was based on the previous year's dividend checks. The
amount would be smaller the follow ng year, and would have
to be made up with another fund source.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the Governor's veto of half of
the PFD related to the cost expenditure. She wondered if
t here was an uni nt ended consequence of the veto.

Ms. Pitney specified that in FY 18, the anount of the fund
woul d be dimnished as a result of reduced divi dends.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon asked i f t he consequence was
unanti ci pat ed.

Ms. Pitney relayed that the reduction of funds was a known
consequence of the veto.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop thought it mght be helpful to have DOC
work with Ms. Pitney. He had chaired the Senate Finance
Budget Subcommittee for DOC for several years, and recalled
that the previous year there had been savings due to
Medi cai d expansion, resulting in a lower G spend. He was
interested in knowing what happened to the estinated
savi ngs.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that some cost-drivers had been
raised in the health system and referred to a new
t r eat ment for Hepatitis-C. She understood that t he
treatment was very costly, and wondered if M. Pitney had
referred to the new cure.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative, and relayed that
the DOC healthcare treatnment for Hepatitis-C was $74, 000
per patient. She el aborated that the state had been able to
use a buying consortium in order to receive a relatively
| ow price. She noted that the occurrence of Hepatitis-C in
pri sons was upwards of 20 percent.

10: 07: 54 AM
AT EASE

10: 09: 19 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair MacKinnon relayed that she had been inquiring
about the cost increase for Hepatitis-C treatnent, and
whet her the state was seeing a cost increase over tine.

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked if M. Pitney had reconmended
back-filling inmate funds with the Alaska Capital |ncone
Fund.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative, for FY 18.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if there were dollars in the fund
that Ms. Pitney hoped to use for a recurring cost. She
stated that the Capital Income Fund was typically used for
one-tinme increnents for capital projects.

Ms. Pitney stated that in the past, the Capital I|ncome Fund
had been used for one-tinme increnents; but it was a
recurring annual revenue stream

Ms. Pitney noved to page 9, line 34 of the supplenental
summary, which was a reappropriation for the Al aska
Vocat i onal Techni cal Cent er. The funds would allow

rescoping of a deferred nmintenance appropriation of the
past to neet the center's nost urgent need.

Ms. Pitney conmunicated that lines 35 and 36 addressed the
nost recent judgenents and settl enents.

Ms. Pitney noted that line 37 pertained to a settlenent
between the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOTl) and the US. Environnental Protection
Agency (EPA). There had been a consent decree and final

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 02/07/17 9:01 A M



order, involving $8 nillion to address the dCass V
i njection wells.

Ms. Pitney noted line 38 was a reduction in the state's
debt service cost due to the refinancing of the Goose Creek
Correctional Center, which resulted in $655,000 in savings.

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to line 34, and asked if there
was a reason that the funds were not requested in FY 18, or
if the funds were FY 17 noney that was expiring.

Ms. Pitney believed that some of the items had FY 17
expirations, while others had a |apse date of FY 18 or FY
19. She thought the |ine addressed urgent needs.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about Iine 37, and thought that
there had been a one-tine request for funds for disposition
of the Cass V Injection Wlls. She wondered if there was a
new well, or if there had been increased costs or
expenditures. She asked if Ms. Pitney could provide further
clarification.

Ms. Pitney agreed to provide nore detailed infornation at a
| ater date. She thought earlier funds had been used to
address the first one or two wells in order to denonstrate
progress. Fulfilling the consent decree would satisfy the
EPA's conplaint with the state.

Co-Chair MacKinnon had a conplaint wth the federa
government about the wells that it had left. She asked if
there was a consent decree for the wells that the federa
gover nment had abandoned on federal | and.

Ms. Pitney did not track the wells left by the federal
gover nnent .

10: 13: 53 AM

Ms. Pitney |looked at Iine 39 on page 10, which requested $3
mllion to maintain a balance in the D saster Relief Fund.

Ms. Pitney noted that there was an item that should have
been included on the sheet - a $15 mllion supplenental
request for wildfires. She explained that there had been an
oversight within her office, and it would be brought in as
an anendnent .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if the addition would bring the
overal | suppl enmental request to $130 nmillion.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Hoffrman asked if the $15 mllion was for
anticipated wildfires between the present and June 30th,
2017.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Hoffrman asked if it was normal to have wldfires
to that extent between the nonths of February and June.

Ms. Pitney detailed that only $5 mllion of the $15 mllion
was associated with anticipated fires.

Co-Chair Hoffrman asked if the difference in funds was to
cover wildfires that occurred prior to the present.

Ms. Pitney stated she would provide docunmentation of the
costs associated with each associated fire.

Vice-Chair Bishop asked about the omssion of the $15
million item

Ms. Pitney reiterated that the omssion had been an
over si ght.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop thought there could be sone opportunity
for federal funds for reinbursenent for fires.

Ms. Pitney stated that the anmount of the request had
accounted for federal funds. The request was for the state
funding portion. She agreed to provide details on the
amount of federal and state funds.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the previous year's request for
fire suppression had been $47 mllion.

Ms. Pitney responded in the affirmative, and said the funds
were largely lapsed. She stated that the adm nistration was
bei ng much nore conservative in its current request.

10:17: 34 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Senator Mcciche referred to Iine 37, and nentioned the 53
Class V injection wells. He wondered if the Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation (DEC) worked with DOT to nake
sure there was conpliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act.

Ms. Pitney stated that DOT and DEC woul d have a nmuch deeper
under st andi ng of the consent decree and |inkages.

Senat or M cci che thought t hat $8 mllion was not
insignificant, and thought perhaps there was a |arger
pr obl em

Co- Chair MacKi nnon referenced "travesty" wells on Bureau of
Land Managenent |and, which the federal governnent had
started to cl ean up.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if M. Pitney had covered the
adm nistration's capital request as well as its operating
request .

Ms. Pitney specified that the capital requests were
detailed on page 6, line 24; and page 8, line 25 and |ine
26.

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked if the capital requests were the
White Pass organizational grant and the WId Hatcheries
Sal non Managenent t ool

Ms. Pitney added that the Pittman-Roberts funding was al so
i ncl uded.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought Co-Chair Hoffman had asked for
detailed followup concerning what regions wuld be
affected by individual projects.

10: 20: 13 AM

Senator M cciche pointed out his support for the "outside-
of -t he-box" thinking on the capital budget. He nentioned
the $75,000 item for the Local Boundary Comm ssion (as
required by state law). He highlighted the WId/ Hatchery
Sal nron Managenent Tools item which was sinply receipt
authority for $5.9 mllion, and had conmitted funding from
Pacific Seafood Processors and the Northern Southeast
Regi onal Aquaculture Association. He wanted to see nore
i nstances where those directly benefitting were willing to
invest in state processes.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Senator Dunleavy commented that he considered M. Pitney
and the admnistration to be going in an opposite direction
as the legislature. He asserted that the Senate was hopi ng
to reduce the budget by $750 million over seven years. He
requested that the adm nistration go through an exercise to
identify areas in which funds could be shifted to avoid
i ncreases. He enphasized the need for concurrence on the
budget .

Senat or M cciche wondered if it would signify an
unal |l ocated cut iif Senate support was denied for sone
increnents in the supplenental bill. He asked Ms. Pitney to

expl ain how reductions would be nmanaged if increnents were
reduced by 50 percent.

Ms. Pitney referred to the DOC healthcare item in which
the agency had asked for over $11 nillion. She reported
that the governor's office had pushed back and asked the
departnent how it could manage it to be less than $11
mllion within the departnent organization. She believed
that if the expense could be reduced to $8 million in DOC
as a whole, it would be well-nmanaged. She thought that if
the anount was  short-funded, it woul d require a
ratification in the next year.

10: 24: 37 AM

Senator M cciche asked if the administration was subnitting
a supplenental budget that had already been substantially
scrubbed and reduced where possible. He pondered that if it
was the wll of +the legislature to push additiona
scrubbing and nore heavy-handed nanagenent of t he
increnents, the admnistration would have to absorb the
costs el sewhere.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thanked Ms. Pitney for her presentation.
She discussed the challenging fiscal climate, and referred
to spending from savings accounts. She thought there were
state services that were valued in different ways across
the state. She acknow edged that Ms. Pitney was nanagi ng a
difficult position and expressed appreciation for her
efforts. She wondered about the cost of overall personnel.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Ms. Pitney estimated that just over $2 billion of the $10
billion total state budget was personnel. She noted that
there were different proportions of per sonnel per
departnment; and the legislature had very high personnel,
while DOT had a fairly |low percentage of personnel and a
hi gher percentage of contractual services. She stated that
as a rule of thumb, nearly 50 percent of the state budget
was sent out directly to providers, conmunities, or
i ndi vi dual s.

10: 27: 47 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman referred to the governor's State of the
State and State of the Budget public addresses, in which he
had classified the budget as a potential «crisis. In
considering the supplenental budget request, he thought
that the Senate had been pushing for larger cuts than the
governor and House for the previous four years. He thought
it was because of the continued pressure by the Senate that
the state was able to see a dimnished operating budget. He
t hought many committee nenbers felt that the supplenenta
budget being presented was not treating the budget as a
crisis.

Co- Chair Hoffman continued, and shared concerns that there
was an over $60 million request at a tinme when the state
was in the last stages of wusing its budget reserves. He
knew the Senate had passed PFD reform but did not know
what woul d happen with other revenue neasures. He thought
the state needed to |look at additional ways to address its
fiscal issues. He enphasized the need for tighter contro

of spending, but thought it was not the prevailing position
of the House or the adm nistration. He enphasized that the
state could not continue to have a status quo budget. He
knew that the state needed to continue to provide the
services that Al askans had enjoyed, but did not know if the
financial neans were available to fund the same |evel of
servi ces.

Co-Chair Hof fman discussed the operating budget and the
5/4/3 plan, which seened to be extrene at first glance and
included a reduction of $300 mllion. He nentioned | ooking
at overall reductions on a percentage basis, and referenced
the previous year's cut to the municipal assistance program
that was 50 cents on the dollar. He suggested that it was
possible to cone up with reductions of 5 cents on a dollar.
He thought great strides had been made wi th reductions, but

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 02/07/17 9:01 A M



t hought further cuts were needed. He reiterated that the
budget being presented was a status quo budget, and the
state needed to |l ook at things differently.

10: 32: 56 AM

Senator M cciche pointed out that DHSS was one of the four
categories of greatest state expenditures, and asked if the
admnistration had a team charged to evaluate the increase
in healthcare <costs. He thought the legislature was
accepting the increases, wthout aggressively planning for
a reversal. He asked M. Pitney to explain the
adm nistration's priority in addressing the healthcare
i ncrease issue.

Ms. Pitney discussed increnent requests that were health
cost related. She thought that the state nust address
heal thcare costs. She infornmed that the admi nistration had
several teans addressing the issue; including the Division
of Insurance, which was working on the private market area.
She had just returned froma relevant neeting in Washi ngton
D.C. She expected federal relief related to a private
mar ket subsidy of $55 million. Departnent of Adm nistration
Comm ssi oner Shel don Fisher was working on the matter with
his team The area of enployee and retiree healthcare
negoti ati ons was bei ng addressed.

MVs. Pitney continued to address Senator M cci che's
guesti on. She di scussed t he Heal t hcar e Aut hority
feasibility study, and pondered buying power and the
efficacy of a nore conbined risk pool. She reported
tremendous work in the area of Medicaid, and thought there
had been 17 different initiatives addressing healthcare
costs and containnent. She added that there were school
district healthcare <costs, |local governnent healthcare
costs, and private enployer healthcare costs. She thought
the only way the state could keep the costs of state
government at bay was through significant healthcare
reform She rel ayed t hat Commi ssi oner Davi dson;
Comm ssi oner Fisher; and Departnent of Conmerce, Comunity,
and Econom c Devel opnent Comm ssioner Chris H adick; and
herself were working together to address the issue at
large. The group wanted to view healthcare in totality
rather than separated in disparate subjects such as
Medi cai d, private insurance, and school district insurance.

10: 38: 10 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Senator M cciche referenced the DOC request for $34 nillion
of UGF, which was 75 percent related to healthcare costs.
He referred to the possibility of a white paper summari zi ng
the list of efforts happening concurrently. He was in
support of a spending limt. He thought if the state did
not get control of the healthcare costs it wuld be
challenging in the future.

Senator von | nmhof asked why the state should be responsible
for absorbing the lion's share of healthcare cost increases
each year.

Ms. Pitney was not sure.

Senator von | nmhof asked about stakeholders in the
heal thcare industry in the state, and thought it seened as
if the state seemed to be absorbing the mjority of
heal thcare cost increases for teachers and public
enpl oyees.

Ms. Pitney stated that there was nore of the cost being
passed to enployees in the current year, as well as a
forthcom ng increase the subsequent year. She pondered to
what degree it would be possible to pass on the costs of
the premium including to the provider conmunity.

Senator O son referred to comments by Senator M cciche and
thought the legislature seened to have a resistance to
i ncreased revenues. He wondered how different t he
adm nistration's requests would be if there was an incone
tax or simlar revenue neasure in place.

Ms. Pitney stated that the admnistration was very
committed to reducing costs and cost containnment. She
considered that the revenue strategies put forward by the
adm nistration just filled the fiscal gap to neet the
current |evel of budget. She thought there needed to be a
plan to address the lack of capital spending in the state.
She recalled that the governor's proposed budget reduced

agencies by $127 nmillion, with a net $60 nillion counting
fund source changes. The changes were offset by increase in
oil and gas tax credits, the mninmum capital budget
requirenents, and paying the full conmuni ty debt

r ei nthur senent anount.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 02/07/17 9:01 A M



Ms. Pitney continued that the adm nistration was conmtted
to additional reductions, which were needed just to stay
even in any given year. Additionally, the admnistration
was conmtted to filling the $3 billion structural deficit
wi th revenue.

10: 43: 38 AM

Senator O son discussed cost containment, and thought there
were detrinental effects associated with cuts to prograns
like Head Start, and public safety. He nentioned problens
in his district associated with di mnished funding airports
and police response tinme. He nentioned conmunity revenue
sharing, which was inportant to small villages. He wanted
to ensure that such itenms were not cut too deeply so as to
i npact necessary services.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon di scussed the schedule for the follow ng
day.

SB 43 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 45: 49 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:45 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 02/07/17 9:01 A M



